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THE MEMBERS,
TREMDLOUD DIGITAL INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Your directors’ have pleasure in presenting before you the 6™ Annual Report of the Company together
with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024,

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMAMNCE:

The financial results for the year ended 31st March, 2024 and the corresponding figures for the year are
as under:
{Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Revenue from operations 3210.55 570720
Other Income 63.23 35.16
Total Income 327378 574236
Total expenses 3120.62 5557.26
Profit / (Loss) befare taxation 153.15 185.10
Less: Tax Expense (17.99) (57.34)
Profit / (Loss) after tax 135.16 127.76
RESERVES & SURPLUS:

During the year under review, the Company has not transferred any amount to its General Reserves
account except that of the Profit of Rs. 135,16,000 during the year.

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY'S WORKING DURING THE YEAR / STATE OF COMPANY'S
AFFAIRS:



The Company is majorly involved in media, motion picture, videotape and television programme
production services, During the year under review, the Company has made Net profits amounting to of
Rupees 1,35 Crore from the business. The Directors of the Company are taking necessary measures to
bring better results in the years to come.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:
There has been no change in the nature of the business of the Company during the year under review.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL CHANGES
AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY:

Your Company has become a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Vision Time India Limited during the year
under review. Apart from that, no other material changes and commitments affecting the financial
position of the Company having an impact on the functioning and working of the Company has
ocourred between the end of the financial year to which these financial statements relate to till the date
of this report. The operations of the company have been effectively managed.

DIVIDEMD:
The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year under review.

DETAILS OF MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss on business matters. During the financial year 2023-24,
the following meetings of the Board of directors were held as detailed in the table below:

5.Ne Date of Board Meeting Number of Directors at the | Total number of Directors

time of meeting who attended the meeting
1 01.04.2023 4 4
2 05.04.2023 4 4
3 19.06.2023 4 4
4 22092023 q 4
5 29.09.2023 3 3
6 20.11.2023 3 3
T 20.02.2024 3 3

BOARD OF DIRECTORS / CHANGES AND DECLARATION BY THE COMPANY:

The Board of Directors consists of:
£ Mo | Mame of the Director Designation

1 R. Suliumaran Director




10

11

12

13

14

2 . Usha Director
3 R.Raja Managing Director
4 M. Chidambaram® | Director

*Mr. Chidambaran Natesan, Director of the Company, resigned from the Board with effect from 29th
sept, 2023

Declaration by Company: None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified from being appointed
as Directors as specified in Section 164(2) of the Act read with Rule 14 of Companies (Appointment and
Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014,

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL:

The disclosure under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS AND OPINION BY THE BOARD:

The provisions of Section 149(4) relating to appointment and declaration made by Independent
Directors do not apply to your Company. Thus, the Company has not appointed any Independent
Director into the Board. Thus, the opinion of the Board with regard to integrity, expertise and experience
of the Independent Directors was not applicable as well.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPOMSIBILITY POLICY:

During the year under review, the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules
made thereunder concerning Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) are not applicable to the Company
The Company does not meet the criteria laid out in the said section, i.e., net worth, turnover, or net
profit thresholds specified under Section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, the Company is not
required to constitute a CSR Committee or undertake any CSR activities as per the said provisions or
have a CSR Policy in place.

RISK MAMAGEMENT POLICY:

The Company has in place a risk management mechanism to address the financial, legal and operational
risks inherent to the business of your Company. In the opinion of your Board, these internal controls are
adequate and commensurate with the size and nature of the Company.

SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE COMPANY:

During the year under review, the Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate,
ner had any of these in the past.

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS:
During the year, no significant and material orders were passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in the future,
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SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY:
There were no change in the issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of your Company during the
year under review. The capital structure of the Company is as under:-

S.no | Share Capital Pattern 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

1 Authorised Share Capital: 10,00,000 Equity | Rs. 1,00,00,000 Rs. 1,00,00,000
Shares of Rs. 10/- each

2 Issued and Subscribed: 10,00,000 Equity | Rs. 1,00,00,000 Rs. 1,00,00,000
Shares of Rs. 10/- each

AUDIT & AUDITORS:
I. Statutory Auditors:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, including any statutory enactment
or modifications thereof, M/s. V. Narayanan & Co, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.
002398S) whose term expires at this ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company, is now
put forth before the members for their approval, who shall further hold office till the AGM to be held in
the year 2029, at a remuneration as may be agreed between the board of directors and auditors.

The Auditor has provided a certificate confirming their eligibility for re-appointment as per the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and has been performing their duties with diligence and
professionalism. The Board believes that the continued engagement of the said firm, will ensure the
maintenance of high standards of financial reporting and compliance.

Il. Other Audits:

a. Cost Audit: The provisions of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company as the Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records for any
of the products of the Company. b. Secretarial Audit: The provisions of Section 204 regarding Secretarial
Audit are not applicable to your Company. c. Internal Audit: The Company is not required to appoint an
Internal Auditor pursuant to Rule 13(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

REPLY TO THE REMARKS OF THE AUDITOR:

The Auditors' Report does not contain any qualification or adverse remarks. The Notes to Accounts and
comments in their report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments.

FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS:

The Company has not entered into transactions which are fraudulent or illegal of the Company's code of
conduct. During the year, no fraud has been reported by the Statutory Auditors' which are required to
report under sub section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 other than those which are
reporiable to the Central Government,
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WEBSITE OF ANNUAL RETURMN:
A copy of the annual retumn is placed on the website of the company - www.trendloud.com

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMEMNTS UNDER SECTION 186:

The Company during the year has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in excess of the limits specified under the provisions of section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Disclosure under loans, guarantees or investments covered under Section 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013, forms part of notes to the Financial Statement provided in this Annual report.

DEPOSITS:

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the year under review under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, nor has any deposits which remained unpaid or unclaimed, and
no default in repayment. and hence, the requirement for furnishing of details of deposits which are not
in compliance with the Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable.

PARTICULARS OF COMTRACTS OR ARRAMNGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

During the financial year 2023-24, all contracts / transactions entered by the Company with related
parties under Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 were in the ordinary course of business and on
an arm'’s length basis. The disclosure to be reported in Form AOC-2 is attached as annexure to this
report.

Attention of members is drawn to the disclosure of transactions with related parties set out in Note Na.
28 to the Financial Statements.

REPORTINGS ON SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE:

As a part of disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013, the Company is committed to provide a safe and conducive work environment
to its employees. The Company has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee. All employees are
treated with dignity with a view to maintain a peaceful work enviranment. Mo such complaints were
reported during the year under review,

DISCLOSURES REGARDING ISSUE OF SHARES:

During the Financial year ended 31st March, 2024
(il The Company has not issued any Employees Stock Option pursuant to Rule 12(9) of the
Companies (Share Capital and Debenture Rules), 2014,
() The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares pursuant to Rule 8(13) of the Companies
{Share Capital and Debenture Rules), 2014,
(iii) The Company has not issued any equity shares with differential right pursuant to Rule 4(4) of the



Companies (Share Capital and Debenture Rules), 2014,
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AND OUTGO:

I. Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption

he provisions relating to Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption, and Foreign Exchange Eamings
and Outgo, as specified under Section 134({3){m) of the Companies Act, 2013, are not applicable to the
Company. As a private company, we do not have any significant transactions or operations that would
necessitate these disclosures. However, the Company remains committed to sustainable practices and
efficient resource management.

Il. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Details of Foreign Exchange Earmnings and Expenditures during the year are as below: (Amount in
Rs.[Lakhs])

Particulars FY ended 31.03.2024 | FY ended 31.03.2023

Earnings in Foreign Exchange : =

Expenditure in Foreign Currency = £

TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND:

Your company did not have any funds lying unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years. Therefore,
there were no funds which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund
(IEPF).

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

The Company has complied with applicable secretarial standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India with regard to Board and Shareholders meeting (55-1 & 55-2).

DETAILS OF APPLICATION UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016:

There were no applications made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016, during the year.

DETAILS OF VALUATION DOME:

The details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one-time settlement and
the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions along with the reason
thereof: Not Applicable,
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VOLUNTARY REVISION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND BOARDS REPORT:
There is no such instance of voluntary revision of Financial Statements or Board's report made by the

Company.

AUDIT/ NOMINATION & REMUNERATIOM COMMITTEE:
The provisions relating to section 177 and section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to

the Company.,

VIGIL MECHANISM:

Provisions relating to establishment of Vigil Mechanism are not applicable to the Company. However,
the Company has established this policy to enable this mechanism ensures that directors and employees
can report genuine concemns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud, or violation of the
Companys code of conduct, while maintaining confidentiality and providing protection against
retaliation

COMPANIES POLICIES ON DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION INCLUDING
CRITERIA FOR DETERMINING QUALIFICATIONS UNDER PROVISIONS OF SECTION 178:

The provisions of section 178 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.

Further, the Company has not paid any Managerial remuneration to its Director during the year under
review, however as the company being a Private Company, the provisions of Section 198 are not
applicable.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

Particulars of employees as required to be given under the provisions of Section 197(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Key
Managerial Personnel} Rules, 2014 are not applicable,

DISCLOSURE WITH RESPECT TO LOANS / AMOUNT RECEIVED FROM DIRECTORS OR RELATIVE OF
DIRECTORS:

No loans has been obtained from any of the Directors and/or their relatives, during the year under
FEVIEW,

DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

The Directors' Responsibility Statement referred to in clause (c) of Sub- section (3) of Section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013 shall state that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and mace
Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of
the company for that period,

¢} the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safequarding the assets of the company



and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

) the directors had devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such system were adequate and operating effectively.

37 ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

The directors place on record their sincere appreciation for the assistance and co-operation extended by
Bank, its employees, its investors and all other associates and look forward to cantinue fruitful
association with all business partners of the company.

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Trendloud Digital India Private Limited

M st =
Date: 20.09.2024 Raja Ramgmurthy . Sukurmaran
Place: Chennai Managing Director Director

DIN: DBOS56120 DIMN: 08177549



FOR -
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2074)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arms’ length transactions under third proviso thereto.

1. Detalls of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:
There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered in to during the year
ended 31st March, 2024, which were not arm's length basis.

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis:

Mame of Mature of Nature of Duration of Date of Salient | Amount

related party | relationship | Contract/ Contract/ approval | terms, | paid as
arrangement,/ | arrangement/ | by Board, | ifany | advances,
transactions transactions if any if any {In

Rs)

Vision Time Holding Direct Cost; 2023-24 - - .

India Private | Company Revenue from

Limited operations

Trend Music | Director Direct Cost; | 2023-24 - - -

Private Interested Revenue from

Limited Company operations

Trendioud Director Revenue from | 2023-24 - % =

Singapore Interested | operations

PTE Ltd Company

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Trendloud Digital India Private Limited

. Sukumaran

Date: 20.09.2024
Place: Chennai

Director
DM 08177549

DIM: 08058120
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INDEPENDENT AUMTOR'S REPORT

To
The Members,
Trendloud Digital India Frivate Limived,

91, Top Floor,

Investwell Centre GN Chetty,
T.Magar,

Chennai —600017.

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of M/s. Trendloud Digital India Private
Limited, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including the

Statement of Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement, the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act') in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended), of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, its Profit (financial
position including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our auditing accordance with Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the audit of the
Srandalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the *Code
of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. Other information does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
50, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge

obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Other offices:
64, 170, Indira Nagar, Znd Stage, Bangalore - 530 038 Tek: 080-2432 0146
Mo 11, 2nd Cross Streat, Sundar Magar, Trichy - 620 021 Tet 04314051260




If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. Reporting
under this section is not applicable as no other information is obtained at the date of this auditor’s report.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013
{“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In proparing the financial staicinenis, the Boand of Dircctor is reapemible for asscasing the Company’s abillty o
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so. The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company s financial

reporting process.

Auditor®s Responsihbilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatemenis can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of

users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

s  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order 10 design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the company has
in place an adequate internal financial control system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

s  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

s Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based en
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves

fair presentation,

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatement in the financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be
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]'nﬂuencad. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatement in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audil,

We also provide management with a statement that we have complied with the relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, related safe guands.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the *Annexure A" a statement
un the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, wo the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledgze and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

{b) In our gpinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies ( Accounis) Rules, 2014 except the compliance of AS 15 in respect
of creating a provision for gratuity to employees as described in the basis for qualified opinion.

{e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 315t March, 2024 taken on record by

the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 3 1st March, 2024 from being appointed as a director
in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) The reporting on adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls is not applicable as the company does not meet the criteria as mentioned in
the MCA notification dated 13th June 2017 (G.5.R. 583(E)).

() With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the

explanations given to us;
i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
maaterial foreseeable losses,

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note
42(15) to the financial statement, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or
entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Company, or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in t_h_e note 4 I 5)
to the financial statement, no funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including

Oiher offices:
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vi.

foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security

or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under clause (iv) (a) and

(iv) (b) contain any material mis-statement.
The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year,

The Accounting Sofiware used by the Company during the year ended 31* March 2024 does not have the
feature of creating an edit log of each changes made in books of accounts along with the date when such
changes were made, as required under Rule 3(1) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2004,

However, the Company has introduced the features in their accounting software as on the date of our report
for the year ended 31.03.2024.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting
under Rule 11{g) of the Companies { Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the
statutory requirerments for record retention is not applicable for the financial yvear ended March 31, 2024,

3. The provision of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to the Company since the
company is not a public company as defined under seetion 2{71) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under section
|97(16) is not applicable.

For M/s V., Narayanan & Co

Membership No. 025713

Place :

Date : 20-09-2024

artered Accountants

no. (023988

SHANKER

Chennai
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Annexure “A" To Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’

section of my report of even date)

(1)
a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including  quantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

b) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

¢) According to information and explanations given to us, the management has physically verified these
Property Plant and Equipment at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

d) The title deeds of the immovable properties disclosed by the management of company in the financial
statements in Note No-42(1) are held in the name of the company.

¢) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or Intangible Assets during the vear.

f) As disclosed in Note No-42(7), there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the company for
holding any Benami Property during the current year.

(ii)
a) The inveniory has been physically verified (copyrights of media content verified with reference to
title documents/agreements) by the management at reasonable intervals during the vear.,

b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limit in excess of five crore rupees by banks
or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets during any point of time of the
year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.,

(iii) According to the information and Explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the company, the company during the year has not made investments in, provided any guarantee
or security or granted any loans or advances in nature of loans, secured or unsecured, o companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties as disclosed by management of company in Note No-
42(4).

(iv) According to the information and Explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the company, as disclosed above, there have been no loans, investments and guarantees given
by company and hence the provisions of section 185 and 186 of Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable,

(v) According to the information and Explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the company, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to
76 of the Companies Act 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended).
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

{vi) The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of
section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/business activity. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3{vi) of the Order is not applicable.

{vii} (a) According to the information and Explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the company, the company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods
and service Tax, Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance, Income Tax, and any other statutory dues
with the appropriate authorities. Further, there are no outstanding statutory dues existing as on the last day
of Financial year which is outstanding for more than 6 months from the day these becomes payable.

Other offfces:
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Annexure “A"” To Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of my report of even date)

{b) There are no dues in respect of sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise and value added
tax that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute except income
tax for which the details are shown below:

Sk MNao. Assessment Year of Demand Amount { Rs. In lakhs) Pending forum
1 AY 2023-24 18.56 NAFAC
2 AY 2021-22 22.72 ITAT
Total 41.28

{viii) According to the information and Explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the company, the company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously
unrecorded as income in the books of accounts in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43
of 1961) as income during the year.

(ix)

(a) According to the information and Explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the company, the company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial
institutions, bank or debenture holders.

{b) According to the information and Explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

records of the company, we are of the opinion that, the company has not been declared as Willful
defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender as disclosed in Mote No-42(9).

{e) Acconding to the information and Explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the company, we are of the opinion that the term loans were applied for the purpose for
which the loans were obtained.

(d) According to the information and Explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the company, we are of the opinion that the funds raised on short term basis have not been
utilized for long term purposes.

{e) On an overall examination of the records of the company, the company has not taken funds from any
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,

(f) The company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries,
joint ventures or associate companies.

(x)
(a) The company has not raised funds by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt

instruments) during the year. Accordingly the reporting under clause is not applicable.
(b) The company has not raised funds by way of any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year.
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(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of my report of even date)

(xi}

(a)  According to the information and explanations given by the management and based upon the audit
procedures performed for the purpose reporting in the true and fair view of the financial statements,
we report that there is no fraud by the company or any fraud on the company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

{b) We were the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the previous year and confirm than we have not
filed any report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act that has been filed by the
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government.

{2}  Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanation given to us, we report
that, the company has not received any whistle-blower complaints during the year.

(xii) The company is not a Nidhi Company, hence the reporting of required information of this clause and rules
of MNidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered
imto by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act, The
details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the Standalone financial statements
in Note no. 31, as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures
specified in Companies {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 as prescribed under section 133 of the
Act. Further, according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required
to constitute an audit committee under section 177 of the Act.

(xiv) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has an Internal audit
system commensurate with the size and nature of its business, expect for control with respect to
compliance and documentation of Company’s transactions with related parties.

(b) The Company is not required to appoint an internal auditor as per the provisions of section 138
of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

{xv) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with them and accordingly, provisions of

section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi} (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi){a)(b) and (¢} of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Core
Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the RBl. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company does not have cash loss during the current year and during immediately during
preceding financial year.

{xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the vear. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company,
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(Referred to in paragraph 1 under *Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of my report of even date)

(xix)  According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come 1o our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that the company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not fulfill the criteria as

specified under section 135(1) of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Poliey) Rules, 2014 and according, reporting under elause I3(xn) of the Order ia not applivable to the
Company.

{xx1) The reporting under clause 3{xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said
clause under this report.

For M/s ¥, Narayanan & Co
3 =red Accountants

; V Mo, (023985

Membership No. 025713
Place: Chennai
Date: 20-09-2024
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Corporate information )
TRENDLOUD DIGITAL INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED is a Company in India under the provisions of Compantes
Act incorporared with Registrar of Companies, Tamil Madu Vide O, U74300TN2018PTC123655 an 11th July 2018. The

Company is engaged in creating digital content and CAmpPAingns.

General information and statement of compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

‘Ihese financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS  per Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules, 2016 as notified under section 133 of
Companies Act, 2016 (the "Act”) and other relevant provisions of the Act under the historical cost convention on the
accrual basis.

The financial statements s at and for the year ended 31 March 2024 are approved and authorized for issue by the board of
directors on 20-09-2024

Figures for the previous years have been regrouped /rearringed wherever considered necessary to conform to the current
year, clagsification.

Summary of accounting policies

Overall considerations

These fnancial statements have been prepared using the material accounting policy information and measurcment basis
curnmarized below, These accounting policies have been used throughout all periods presented in the financial statements,
except where the Company has applied certain accounting policies and exemptions upon transition to Ind AS.

Acenunting policies have been consistently apphed except wheee a newly issued accounting standard is initially adepted ora
revision to an existing accounting standard requires 4 change in the accounting policy hatherto in use.

In accordance with Ind AS 101, the Company presents three Balance Sheets, two Statements of profit and loss, two
Spatements of cash flows and two Statements of changes in equity and related notes, including eomparative information for
all statements presented, in its first Ind AS fnancial statements. In future periods, Ind AS 1 requires two comparative
periods w be presented for the Balance Sheet only in certain circumstances.

Current and non-current classification

ATl assets and labilitics have been classified as current or non-curcent as per the Company's normal operating cycle and
ather eriteria set out in the Schedule 111 to the Act. Based on the nature of products and time berween the acquisition of
assets for processing and their realisation in cash and eash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12
months for the purpose of current or non-current classificanon of assets and Habilities.,

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (), which is also the funcional currency of the Company,

Foreign currency transactions and balances

A foreign currency transaction shall be recorded, on initial recognition in the functional currency, by applying to the foreign
cursency amount the spot exchange mate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the
transaction. Exchange differences arising on actual payments/ realisations and year-end restatements are recognised in the

Statement of profit and loss.

Naon monetary items are not re translared at year end and are measured at historical cost (transkated using the exchange rate
at transaction date},




33
331

i3z

3a

35

Revenue recognition

Revenue from digital campaigns & content production .

Under Ind AS 115, 1 standardised five-step model applies to assessing the amount of revenue 1o be cecognised 23 follosws:
o Tdentifying the contrace with & custoamer

# Identifping the performance obligations

® Determining the transaction price

# Allocating the transaction price 1o the performance obligatons

® Recognising cevenue when,/as performance obligation(s) are satsfied.

Revenues are recorded for the amount of consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange fins
pecformance obligations upon transfer of eontrol to the customer and is measured at the amount of transaction price

net of returms, applicable tax and applicable trade discounts, allorwrances, Goods and Services Tax {GST) collected on behalf

of third pares.

® Sale of media content - Revenue is recognised when the significane tsks and rewands have been teasnferred to the
customes in accordance agreed eems.

o Advertising revenue is recognised when the related advertisement or commencial appears before the public Le. on relecast
Subscription revenue (net of share 1o broadeaster) is recognised on time basis on the provision of television, digiral
broadeasting service to subsenbers.

e Revenue from content trading represent revenue earned from service providers through exploitation of content owned by
the group. Income is recognised as pee the teems of contract with the respective service providess and based on the services
being rendered to the service provider

Interest Income
Interest is recognized using the time-proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable
HILETeET rate,

Inventories

Inventories are valued ar lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is caleulated selling price in ordinary
course of business less the estimated cost of completion and cstimated cost necessary to make the sale
Digital Films are stared at bowee of cost / unamortised cost or net realisable value. Cost comprises acquisition / direct
production cost, Expenses of under production films incuseed till the films are ready for release are inventorsed. Cost of
digiral films are recognised as expense in Statement of Profit and Loss as per the rerms of licencing of multiple digial
nights.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carded at cost of acguision or construction less aceumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. Cost comprses the purchase prce and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended nse.

The Company provides depreciation on written down value basis over the useful life of the Asset as per Sehedule IT e the

Companies Act, 2013, Deprecition for the assers purchased during the year 1s provided on Pro-rata basis. ln respect of
sale of asset, depreciasen is charged up to the dare of sale.

Useful hfe prescribed  Useful life followed by the Company

U undes Schedule 11 (remin)
Building 30 30
Compurers 3 3
OHfice equipment 5 ]
Fusminure and fxmres 1] 10
Yehicles 10 B

The company has sdopred Cost Model for all popeery, plant and equipoment.
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Impairment testing of property, plant and equipment ) _ .
An assessment is undertaken at each Balance sheet date as to whether there is any indicator that an asset may be impaired.

If any such indication exists, an estimate of ecoverable amount of such assets is made and impairment losses, if any i
recognised, when the carrying amount of these assets exceeds their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
greater of the net selling price and value in use of the assers. Value in use is azdved at by discounting the future cash flows
1o their present vilue based on an appropriate discount factor. When these is indication that an impairment Joss recogmsed
for an asset in caclier accounting penods no Ionger exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss 15
recopnised i the Strement of profit and Joss, except in case of revalued assets

Income taxes

Tax expense recognised in Statement of profit and loss comprises the sum of defepred tax and current tax not recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in eguiry,

Calculation of cumrent tax is based on tax mtes in accordance with tax luws that have been enacred on substantively enacted
for the reporting penod. Deferred taxes are calculated based on tax mtes in sccordance with tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted using the Balance Sheet approach on tempozary differences between tax bases of assets
and Lahilities and theie carrying amounts for fnancial reporting purposes at seporting date. Deferred taxes pertuning 1o
items eecognised in other comprebensive income are disclosed under the same. A deferred tax asser shall be recognised for
all deductible tempoary differences to the extent that it is probable that tasable profit will be available against which the
deductible remporary difference can be utlised.

In computing cusrent taxes the Company takes into consideration the benefits admissible under the provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961, In cases wherever the tax liahiliey compured a5 per above is less than the Minimum Alternate Tax,
the Company is lable 1o pay the Minimum Alteenate Tax (MAT), in sccordance with Section 115]B of the Income Tax Act,
1961, MAT credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convisicing evidence that the company will
pay noemal income tax dusing the specified period. In the year in which the Minwmum Alrernative max (MAT) eredit
becomes cligible to be recognised as an asset in accoedance with the recommendations contained in guidance Note issued
by the Instimuge of Chartered Accountants of Tndiy, the said asset is created by way of a credit o the statement of profit snd
loss and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and wates down
the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entilément to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that
Company will pay narmal income tax dunng the specified period.

Financial assets and financial Lhabilities

Classification of financial assct, subsequent measurement and derecognition.

Financial assers of the Company prmarily comprise of loans and receivable measured at amorosed eost, At inital
recognition these financial assets are measured at it far valoe and subsequently messured at amortised cost wsing the
effective interest method. A financial asset s derecognised only when the Company has transferred the rghts to secemve
cash flows from the financial asset or retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial saser, but
assumees a contsactual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Classification of financial liabilitics, subsequent measurement and derecognition.

Financial habilities of the Company primatily comprise of trade payable, retennion payable and other payables measured at
amorriscd cost. At initial recognition these Anancial libilities are measured ar its fuir value and subsequently measured at
amorssed cost using the effective interest method. A financial liability is desccognised when the obliganion under the
liabiliy is dischaged or cancelled or expires.

Employee benefits

(A}  Defined Contribution Plan
Under the defined conrribution plan, the Company has no legal or constructive obligatons to pay contahutions in
addition to its fxed contelbutions, in the pedod that related employee services are recebved.
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Provident fund - .
The Company's contrbution o provident fund is considered as 2 defined contdbution plin and 1 charged as an

expense as it falls due based on the amount of contebution required o be made in accordance with gelevant ules,

(B)  Defined benefit plan _ : _
Under the Company’s defined bencfit plans, the amount of benefit that an employee will receive on retrement 1s
defined by reference to the employes’s length of service and final salary, The legal obligation for any benefits
remans with the Company,

i Gratui

W The lint'I:Iilill.}' recognised in the Balance Sheet for defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation (DBO) at the reposting date. The defined benefit obligation is determined at the Balance Sheet dage by
an independent acuary using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses resulnng from
measurements of the ner defined benefit liabiliry are included in other comprehensive Income.

{ii)  Leave salary - Compensated Absences
The Company alst extends defined benefit plans in the form of Compensated absences to employees. Provision for
Compensated absences is made on actuarial valuation basis.

Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constractive obligation as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an cutflow of economae resources will be required from the Company and amounts can be estimated reliably.
Timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncertan,

Provisions are measured ar the estimated expendinire required to settle the present obligation, based on the most reliable
evidence available ar the reporting date, including the nsks and uncenmunnes associted with the present obligation. Where
there are a number of similar oblipgations, the lkelihood that an outflow will be required in settement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of
maney i miteral

Any reimbursement that the Company is vistually certam to collect from a third party with respect to the obligation is
recognised as 1 separare asser. However, this asset may not exceed the amount of the related peovision, if any;

No liability is recogrased 1f an outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is not probable, Such
situations are disclosed as contingent liabilities where the outflow of resources is remote.

The Company does not recognize any assets of contngent nature unless the realizatton of the income 15 virmually certain,
however these are assessed continually to cnsure that the developments are appeopdately diselosed in the fnancial
staterments.

Earnings per share

Basic eamings pee share is caleulated by dividing the siet peofit/ (loss) for the year attributable to equiry sharcholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares ourstanding during the perod. The weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period is adjusted for events including a bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue to existing
shascholders, share split and reverse share split (consolidation of shases). For the purpose of caleulating diluted eamings pes
share, the net profit/ (loss) for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average oumber of shares
outstnding dusing the puud aes adpasted for tha affacrs of all dilurive porential equity shares

Cash flow statement

Cash Hows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/(loss) before wmx is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of non-cish pature and any deferrals or scerls of past or furure ceceipts or payments. In the cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash m hand, chegues on hand, balances with banks mn cusrent accounts ani
other short- teem highly liquid investments with onginal maturities of 90 days or less, as applicable.




313

504

315

Leases (as a lessee) . _
Leases where the lessor effectvely resains, substantially, all the nisks and benefits of ownership of the leased item are

classificd as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement of profit and loss on
a straight-line basts over the lease e,

Segment informanion _ )
In accondance with Indian Accounting Standaed 108 “Operaning Segments” prescribed by Companes (Accountng
Srandards) Rules, 2015, the Company has determined irs primary business segment as sale of media content & advernsing .
Thercfore, the sepment revenue, segment results, segment assets, segment liahilities, total eost incurred to acquire segrment
assets, depreciation charge are all as i seflected in the financial staements. The Company operites in one pecgraphical
segment and cams significant revenuc from onE custmer,

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been
adopted early by the Company

Certin new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are nor mandatory for 31 March 2024
repaeting periods. Management anticipates that all relevant pronouncements will be adopted for the first pesiod beginning
on or after the effective dare of the pronouncement.

Ind AS 116 ‘Leases” i
O March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affaies has noufied Ind AS 116, Leases. Ind AS 116 will replace the existing
leases Standard, Ind AS 17 Leases, and related Interpretations. The Standard sets out the prnciples for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to 4 contrct 1., the lesscr and the lessor, Ind AS 116
inteoduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessce to recognize assets and Liabilines for all leases with a term
of more than twelve months, unless the undeslying asset is of low value. Currently, operating lease expenses are chasged to
the statement of Profit & Loss. The Standard also contains enhanced disclosure sequirements for lessees.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 116 is annual periods beginning on or aftes Apeil 1, 2019, The standard permits
rwo possible methods of tansigon:

» Full retrospective — Reteospectively to each prior period presented applying Ind AS B Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estiznates and Eevors.

 Modificd retrospective — Retrospectively, with the cummlative effect of initially applying the Standand recognized at the
dare of initial application

Under modified rerrospective approach, the lessee recoeds the lease lability as the present vl of the remwindng lease
payments, discounted at the incremental boerowing rate and the nght of use asser either as:

® Its cacrying amount as if the standard had been appled since the commencement date, but discounted ar lessee's
incremental borrowing sate at the date of initial application or

e An amount equal 1o the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments related to that
Jease recognized under Ind AS 17 immediarely before the date of tmiaal application

Certain practical expedicnts arc available under hath the micthods

On completion of evaluation of the effect of adoprion of Ind AS 116, the management of the Company is proposing to use
the Modifiad Rerrnepaetive Apprach” far rransitioning o Ind A5 116. The EWI-P‘W!I' is CIJI'I!EI:lI:ij" Wdlﬂfﬂlﬂ the effect of
changes on adoption of the standard. However based on the mninal assessment undertaken, the Company does not expect
to have any mateeal inpace on the Anancial statements.




Ind AS 12 Appendix C, 'Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment'

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has potified Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax
Teeatments which is 1o be applied while peeforming the derermination of taxable profi {or loss), ax bases, unused tax
losses, enused tax credits and tax rates, when there 15 uncertainty over ncome fEx treatments under Ind AS 12. According

10 the appendix, companies need to deteerine the probability of the relevant tax authority accepring each tax trearment, or
group of tax treatments, that the companies have used or plan o use in their income tax Aling which has 1o be considered

1o compute the most Likely amount or the expected value of the tax treatment when determining taxable profit (tax loss),
tax bases, unided mx losses, unused tx credits and max sates,

The standard permits o possible methods of tansition -

i) Full eetrospective approach - Under thes approach, Appendie C will be applied setenspectively to each prior reporting
pennd presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimares and Ereors, without
using hindsight and

i} Retrospectively with cumulative effect of mitially applying Appendix C recognized by adjusting equity on mnitial
application, without adjusting compacatives,

The effective dare for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is annual penods beginning on or after Apal 1, 2024, The
Company will adopt the standasd on Apeil 1, 2024 and has decided to adjust the cumulatve effect in equity on the date of

initial application ie. Apal 1, 2024 withour adjusting comparatives.

The effect on adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix € would be insignificant in the financial sttements.
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Trade Payablks .
ol sutstandng die of micen exterprises and small
mm IEES
= CHIE AT Ui bl CTULILIEE WIERSD e e
ENAErPTIS i1} 12177 172 AG S0
s smmall =mi——lisa
Oiher Fanancinl |sabilies b1 a0 3400 1.51
Oiher Current Laghidines o] MM 12.67 56.71
Prowsionns Wﬂh} LTh L § | 211
| ————
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,780.57 1,580,359 AT
Momes 1 - &3 form am (neegral pan of the standalane inanoisl gatements
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
LIMTTRED
Phace : CHENMAL
Diape ; M-00-30124




TRENDLOUD DIGITAL INDIA FRIVATE LIMITED
91, Tap Floor , Investaell Centre GM Chetiy, T, Magar , Cheanal
TTANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LDSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2024
A wmerirt aw ol & dabd , ecepl ahanuie st
. Viear Ended Year Ended
Particulars Hote 30-03-2024 11-63-2023

Iacame

flevenue from Operitions 35 3 55 5,707.20

Orher Tnoome -l ] 63123 1516
Total lncome 31.375.Th 5, 742,56
Expunacs

Diperating cost 25 2841 4. 75014

Empleoyet Benefits Expenscs 24 504,48 53544

Finanse Casis 7 Gl 4% 204

Depreciston and Amorisataen Expense 28 Ty G10E

Ukher expenics n 115.95 109,72

Tl expeaei 320,62 555726

Prifin Before Tax {A-B) 153.15 185,10
Tax Expeases

Ciarrens qux [48. 20T, [GE.5H

D fered tax Y121 124
Profit / (Lass) for the perod from Continuing Operitions 135.16 121.76
Chrher comprehernsive lncome
i Trermes that will nae be reclassified o probit and loss .80 0.25%
i Trecome o relating o ihems that will not be rechssified w profiv and loss 24T [.e)
i Toems that will be reclassibied w profr end oss
. Ineome tx relating to iees thas will be reckisified w profis and loes
Toiul Oiber Comprehensive Incame for e persod 7.33 0.9
Tutal Comprehensive lacome fior the period 14249 127.95
Earnings per equiny shanc M
1} Basc 1352 12,78
i) [hbutead 1352 12.78
Pioies |- 45 form an integral part of the saedalone foascial staitcments

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF
As per our report of even date attached DIRECTORS OF
. TRENDLOUD DIGITAL INDIA PRIVATE
FOR V.MARAYAMAN & CO LIMITED
i ACCOUNTANTS CIM; L7430 TNZ0ISPTC
o T [ =t ___l'
VL
\J
ANEEHR 4
TP NO: D25T 13
ENMAI

Dhwte ¢ 20-05-2124




TREMDLOUD MGITAL INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
91, Top Floar , Investwell Centre G Cheny, T.Nagar , Chennad
STANDALOME STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31-03- 224
L Lovwnt i Joofiow ¢ okl s stbermise statnd]
Year emded Year endied

F 3 Masch, 2024 31 March, D23
11, Met Cash Flow ﬁ'anpuiinl Activities
Mot Profie/ {Lass) Belore Tax A 1551% 18510
| Adfusmaenn o s
Dppreostion snd Amomsanon 605 »m
Diggrrecistion on ROL Asse 224 T
Finance Coas A .
Pawniion Foe Cirauny 1399 [
Imteriul v Lease bl {165 [E3.173)

Touanl -B 1%, 25 151. 7%
Dperacing Profic beliee Warking Capical chanpes ArB=C 11240 156.H6
Adjmstmaond fir changes in Warking Capital o
Decrease/ {Incresse] s levenmeey i LN B (LUITY)
Creomase) {Increase] in Timche rocohiles [32T.6T) LET R
Dieomass/{Incrowse] o Losny [curment) 350 TR
Deceruse/{Increase] m Cibser Cuerens assets 20304 (10
Enerease /{Decranc) m Trade payabio {506m (3T2A
Inciease §[Decnease] m Cument finaeeal halbshiey 41 (&1
Encrease ((Decmease] in Other Cuerene habilities 1243 [RaisH
Cash peneraied from operadons Towml = D 280698 18,18
Lngemne ‘ax paid (neg) E L] [LE
Mt Cash from Operaing Acuvides C+ILE=P 55029 48598
Il Cash Flow from Investment Activities G
A cquisinion of Fised Assens {1REX) [3%.8H)
Aczpumiin of Inmangible Asset 7.0 (509
Invesimeens in LA LT (29249 .
Invustmant in Cheposa (A48 (44
Met Cash Flow useld in Investing Activitics Taral «Lx {291.9%) {U7.52)
ITL. Cach Flivw from F-FF-F'H'G Acrivities H
[, /ud il 18 . {211 45 [ i)
[France il {045 (PO
Mt Cash Flow wsed im Fimancing Activizies Tatal -H (204,94 (8336}
I, St Encrease f (Discnoass] in Cash & Cash Egquivalents F+G+H=1 435 6.37
. Cash and cah Fepuivalosts ad ihe begmming of the year 1 1657 149
¥I. Cash and cach Equivalents at the eod of the year 1+]=K 19452 16,57
WIL Bank halsncres ocher than cash snd cash oquivalests L = =
VI Cagh & Bank Balamces ar the end af the year K+Luh 1592 .57
[This ia the ekl B sd stemnani se forred Bo e e N e T
wur depun uf cven daer anached Fur amad v biehalf of the Boand f Diwecios of
& Co Trendiowd Digical Indis Privane Limised
CIN:UTMMNTNIHEFTCLEESS
e (UZ5HE

AL
Marx | e
Dlate : 3000 2004




A Eaquity share capital

TRENDLOUD DIGITAL INDLA PRIVATE LIMITEDR
01, Tap Flocs , Investivell Cendre (M Chetsy, T.Magar , Chenn
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY ASAT M MARCH 2024
[elamon b Dofinn ks , g midrwnar séested]

s cain M. of Shares Amnunt
{8y A an 31 March 24
Balanee a5 an 1 Apnl 202% 1ML HHI 10000
[ luasigsess o eeporsry shaee capinal due s s penod e
Reseated baliner a1 the beganning of the carrent ropormsgg sl
Chgerygos wn ety shuey capital duemng the yesr
flel: 1nansend duning the yras u
Balamce an ai 30 Manch 2024 1, el (00 |01,
{2} As 2t 31 Masch 2023
Bialancs a5 ax 1 Apal 2022 ¥ K (R L0
Ehngndmﬂuuppmlnlurmwpmmdnm -
Rusested balance at the bignitog of the mament srpemasg period
(Chamges = equity shaaw capital desig ihie year v
Al Lssaed durmg the yoar
[ial ws ai A March 203 1 [0
B. Ouher Equaty
Reeeive anid Di:uﬂn-g_iﬁg:_brl Inrams |

Parizulars z Re-measuremnt af| benc e Tatal
{11 As ar 3 Magch 2024
Balence as a1 51 March 2023 ma | e B SE0AT
Chaiiges in acemminyg pabeyy prioe perid oo - * -
Tentaner] Lk a1 1he g ol the FeporTng peresd = =
L foor the year 13516 - 135 16
Total Comprahgnsive Income B5.16 - L3510
Cihier comprebrnsive Incume|CT)
e -mmeisurerment gain, sy o defeed beve fic plan - 133 .53
Talal acher comprehensive iscome for the year - 733 7.53
|Balance =s at 31 March 2024 ET2AE {056 [
{23 As ar 31 March 2323
Balasmos s an 3 March 122 40,45 {17.08) Haar
i hanges o acoouning [-ull:r.l'[-Hll gl Sidien * 3
Restasgd] babisee an the begmeerg of the cunresd iepomming penod - E
el fior e pear 137,76 1I7.7%
| Toial Comprehensive Income IZ7.76 - 1277
Other comprebemmive Dncone{ O
Bop-memsereil gain (oss) on defmed boosia plan - 01 |
Total asher comprelensive iscome for dee year - 1% e
Balamwce an ai 3} H_lfﬂl‘.lﬂj AATM { 1ii. HY [FIEH

B
R

Lhannai-t ik

[Tk is the Szaiement of Changes in Equity referred i i o sepoat of even dase

Forand an beball of the Boar! of Disecsars of
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TRENDLOUD DIGITAL INDEA PRIVATE LIMITED
91, TOP Floor , INVESTWELL Centre GM Chetry Road T Magar

Summary of material accownting polscy formation and other exp ¥
{olovowaet far Tonelisr ¥ ki, m-p,ﬂpdﬂwhmmd,l

Maotc - 5 Titangible dssee Under Developiment:

o Chenni.

fior the year ended 31 March 2004

g As om As on Hum an

Ficules 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023 st April 222
Dipening Halaoe F : :
Aulietion 232,59 . =
nirpu.lﬂu"wﬂ] - - =
Closing Halance 514 - -
* Refer Mote 416
&) For Intangible asscis under developament, fllowing ageing schodule shall be given:
Ageing of Intangible under development (IAUD) Liwt il Lyt Ldyemn Ty
As at 31at March 2024 e "

As e s Manch 2023

b} There an: ne projects as on nch e
ey pusjects e i the reponting date which has exceeded oo o

25239

priny chaie whie activity ho been suspended. Conidesing the natire of FAULY, there ase
eompared to iss prigeaal plan or whee completion  ovendue.

More than 3 years

Toial
LN



TRENDLOLUD DIGITAL INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
41, Top Floor , Ievestwell Centre G Cheny, T.Magar , Chenna

Summary of marerial scconnting policy infermation and ather explamatony infermation for the vear ended 31 Masch 1024

(et Ju ovatiam ¥ L, iveeny tderwine sttt

Bow 6-ROU Asset:
Sepout belre sre the cacrving dmesanis of aghi-of-use assers recognized and the movements dunng th perisd

Mode 18 Lease Liabdbity:
] Ser-out bekow ase the currimyg ameunts of kease Babilities amd the movements dunng the penod:
: Year ended 31 | Yoar esided 31| As acdl April
Farticulars March 2024 | March 2023 2022
Opening Lease Liahility 18341 198,55 212.41
Addition - -
Dredetiom . =
Fimnee expense 16A4 1825 1950
Payment oof [ease |xibakity -5336 =30.H -33 3
Closing Lease Lishility 16689 18341 196,55
i) The fullowmy w the break-up of curms amd N -cursenn lease lishileies as ar
. Year ended 3 | Vear ended 31| As a0 April
PR March 2024 | March 2023 2022
Current Lease Liababty FEY S 16.52 1513
Bdom-Ciarrent Losse Liabilivy (BTN L) 166,89 EA341
Toml I, B9 15541 198,55
it} The fullasng are the smouns recogmsed 0 saiement of profic snd loss:
. Year ended 3 | Year ended 31| As at 0 ﬂpﬁl
Bendrien March 2024 | March 2024 2021
Depeecimmmn oxpense on Higha of Lise
Aaset 24 2124 2124
Interest Expense in Lease Lisbalities 1684 1B25 1950
Met amaunt recognreesd in the
statement of Profit and loss J8.08 a0 4074

. Year embed 31 | Year ended 3| Az ar 01 Apal
PR March 2024 | March 2023 2022
Grross Carmying amommnt
Opening Deemed Cose 21241 21141 21ZA41
Addmon - -
Dreletion - =
Chusing Gross Canrving amount 2241 24 241
Accamulated Depreciatisg
Openiay accamulsted depreciation 4248 21,74 -
| Deprecianon Charge 21.24 2024 2124
Closing Accumulaied Depreciation 6572 4248 21.24
Per Camrying amauni 148.69 L6955 19117

Mates:

il The Comgany’s lessed assets primanly comsisis of lease for affiee space having lease term opio 7 yeers which can extended foe furhes Pﬂ"nd




TRENDLOUD DIGITAL INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

91, Top Floor INVESTWELL Centre GN Chetty Road T Nagur , Chennai
Symmary of meterial aceounting policy information and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2024
s i matlan & el oy whermad inve)

Mote T - Oither Financinl Asset

3 As on As on As on
Purticulare 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 | Olst April
NonC B a

mmwwM;

(mgasuced at amortized cost)

Rennl Deposits SVaadehd G 538 4.89 445
Dieposins 250 - -
EB |_:||.-|'||.|51I!r| 049

Tonal B.37 4.89 4,45
Mote:

1) There are no othee fnancial assets due by the discetnrs, ather officees wof the company and in entities i which dapechars or

other offcers are interested

2) The casrving smount of cumulative other financial sssets are considered as 4 ressonable approximation of fuix
value and adeguare allowances for lnsses have boen pm\r.idl.'d.

3} A deseription of financial imstrument sk mchuding rsk management objectives and policies are given in note
k8

*Refer Nooe eI
Mote - 9 Inventories (Cost or NRY whichever is lower)
Bacticala As on As on As on
AERERE 31 March 2024 51 March 2023 | Olst April
Digieal filims 11160 346,71 44733
Totul 11160 346.71 447,33




TREMNL

e ————————
LOUTs DIGITAL TNDLA PRIVATE LIMITED

91, Top FLOOR , INVESTWELL Cenire GN Cheiry Road T

Magar , Chenmsai
i h’lhlynrﬂ'lﬂlﬂ!i“urhm

I

i y of rind g policy {if o snad ailher expl y
filmmnnt N Tt & Lakibe, iy e dad]
TRADE RECEIVABLES
[Fartizutars Ana 0l |Asm 31 Alwch huﬂh:.ﬂgﬂ’
Manch 24 furkd a2
4] Serwrmd, somidencd good - * "
i) Unserurnsd, cousidemd goost ekl 1. 33 8.7
i) Trake mevewahlen kanung sz [k - .
| s Aleeaance for eepecisd ciedin ks (446 220 (V50
Toial T 5EL17 it 22
Tramanding for dollowing periods from due date of paymoni 43 o S1-B5-T00
Pariculas Lews cham & | G monshs vo I than Fotal
- o Ttod Yems | ZvodYean | Mose 3 years ol
R Ursiksgrned] Tradds reeewmbies — emunderod good RELEY Bs2 2043 i [ WL
) Undbapused Tradke: Reeeivablas — Ao Rl . - R =
G § Trasde Heve st iz ol - = -
fres Dhspused Tradke Hecenmbiles cossatthene dhoulseiul = * 2 "
Lin: Afsraance for Credn Lok . - x - = m
ol (=i .61 20.33 EEY L4 0870
bsanding ot Tollenwing perices frum due duie af paymeit & an 31-03-2015
Lewa than 6 | 6meonthe oL}y g ypgr | Zo08 Yean | More than 3 yems Toaal
i YVeur
T Unabrspeitond Trasde eeerzabiles — commdered. good 15202 11234 L T et 55
) Uniakisppuired Trake Fecenabien = commbreed deowtiful - . - - -
(i) Tisprusted Tensbe Recowvaliles commleerd grood - - F -
i) Pisputed Tenbe Rocorralid eyl chevurt il .
Lipse Allremnee for Codai Lioss = s . {242
Total 154 1z 332 ] - BHLIY
Tratsmsding fur fullowing perods from duss dane of paymend o o 11413
P Lw chan & | G810 K] 300 vy | 2403 Years | Mose than 3 years Total
el Veur
{1 Unndvmpronrd Trade roccivnbles = ool oo ELE ] (AL NL ME57 A7 145 M2
i) Weadiiguatesd Tradhe Rogeivabibes — gonsidorsd doidifil - -
(i} I":Intmkrl'l.'ﬂ.ljr Eecuvahles conslrrnd pood & = =
(e Dispuiid T R rrabees. conpsdered dguhrid ¥
Lesic Alliwance o coedn loss . - 5 {L%
Tioanl 2565 [TER:] W [R1 245 [#i5.22

Muyie:

companies revpectvely mowhich any dmotioe s & s, a dirceion of & mamlr.
! Fosr bisbamsors aof ke seceivabie owing frimm velsied party (Refer acee. 1)

a) Pl tracke seceveibiles nre dug fnom diresnoes o othor alficers of the Company ciber severlly or ey it wmy ol den-ﬁarmythﬂemn:ﬁlnnhhu Fona dar perER




TRENDLOUD DIGITAL INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
91, Top Floor , Invesrwell Centre GM Chernty, T.Magar , Chenniai

Summary of material sccounting policy information and other explanatory information for the ye

(Aot in Inciam & lakhs | excorps ofberuisr statrd)

Mate - 11 Cash and Cash Equivalents

ar ended 31 March 2024

. As on As on As on
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 (st April 2
A, Cash & Cash Equivalents
Zash In Mand 358 0.42 .78
1) Bulances with Banks In Currrent Accounis
Inchazind Bank A/c Mo, 250214000043 - - 2.41
Canara Bank 16234 16.15
Toual 19.92 16.57 1014
Mate - 12 Loans (carried at amortized cost)
—— Az on As on As om
RIS 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 (st April 2022
Loan to Related Parties( Refer Nore Mo 31) 21233 TILEZ
Total - 212.33 Ti1.83
*,Abave Laans isswed to related compoamies are grven for purpase of business develapment and ave inferest free and refapaiis on despand
MNote - 13 Current Tax Asset/ (Liabilities)-MNet
‘oot As On Ax on As on
AU 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 Dlst Apsil 2022
Imcome Tax Payments (Met (O Provisicns) 4140 T3.56 48.05
Total d4.46 7156 43.05
Nﬂt: = 14 Other Current Asset
—— As on As on As on
il 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 Dist April 2022
Unsecured, Considered Good
M n i = = =
i} Sraff Advance 18.20 20,34 17.69
b} Outhers
iy Balance with Government Authontics 90.30 20135 184.03
i) Deferred Rental Diepost 4.51 516 5.80
Total 113.01 316.85 207.72




TREMDLOLUT DIGITAL INDHA PRIVATE LIMITEDR
9L, Tap Floos , levescoel]l Cenere GN Cheoty, T.Magar , Cherni
Susmary of materiad accounting policy information md cther explanmury information for the year eaded 31 March 224
Lot i el | aaiibe, e’ anberweior idwiedd)

i EQUITY SHAXE CAPITAL

Asoai As o A il
March 1, 2034 March L2073 | Apnil L3
[ Noumber | Amount | Number [ Amoun 1 Number | Amoun
Auiborscd
Shares af INK 10 each (R ] 101 1M () 1y | 1L 10
Isnsed , Subercibed amd folly peid up . .
Eapuicy Shares af 15R 10 zack (R 168 1,8 ) 1|1 168
1, THsD, [H} (1] 100 | 0,000, 60 L]
o Meconcilintion of share capiul
Partioulars s al As m As m
Manch 11, 2000 March 31, T2E Mgl 1 2022
Feumber Amouni Mumber | Ameund | Mumbet Asnoumt
Balance ar she hogmning of ie peas 11K HLEY] 1IKK ] M | 0000 (21
Adl | Sharrs wenel dump the jeas ; % E i
Halance an the end of e yrar [RLETTEL] 1K [NLE ] 160 [ 1,000,HKE o0
Ty 0 | 1,000,000 100 1,000,690 I}
b [Degmils of sharebsaldes e dham 5% shares in ihe company
Iraruculars s an Mlarchs M, 2024 As ut March 3E 323 Aa ai 1 L, 2073
B ol Shiies o i of Shares L o of ]
Vimwom Tunes lndia P Lk SR M LA - - . -
Ihh Hamumurthy L] 111 %% 0N | 3 00 L
1,10 0160 L | 1,000,000 1
b. Dietails of sharcs held by holding company
Pl mrs As 31, 2024 s March 11, M2 As an Apsil 1, 2022
Mo of Fharcw ki Mo of Sharm e Mo of Sharn ki
Viahim Timses Il Pt Ll TP 300 L - * -
L . - . = :
il ing ol the e
Particulars As g March 58, 2024
Noal T ol b e during the year
Najs Ramamunhy L] L% S99
Partizidazs Al March 3, 208
N o Shares | of holdimg |3 Chamges during th yeoe
FH.-lp Hamamuriliy [T TP R ]
Particislars Aos an April |, 2022
Mo of Shares | % of holding |9 i o]
Eli.-in Rainamurthy 00, [ P
¢ The conmprany s only oee class of equity shases bsving par vaug of Ke. 10 per share. Each bokler of quey shares is eanled o ane ol pus shaee. The compaiy
decheres and payy dividends in Indian rapees, The dvidend proposad by e Boand of Devecin i b 10 8 app 1o whe haschoddin in e iy il
Gemeral Meening,
. In che evemn of bmust ol ihe compey, the boklers of equry dharey will ke ctitleil 1 tecewve Emining st of e prmrpany, elier dsmibution of l
I I The Lapsih wall b= i i wn thn ther 1 expinty liages hedd b the shareholilsr

£ Mo equity shares wom dessed a3 bonus, o lor comedention oder than cath o boujgi back durseg the penod of fve pron esehaidy precedeg, the repormg
ilas.




TRENDLOUD DIGITAL INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
91, Top Floor , Investwell Centre G Cheity, T.Magar , Chennai
Summary of material accounting policy information and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2024

(AAmasnt in Lndian € Livkds, eoxoept atberuise stated)

As on As on As om
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 Olse April 2022
{a) Surplus in the statement of profit and Joss 67248 537.31 409.55
) Re-meassurement gain/ (loss) on defined benefit plan -.56 -16.89 -17.08
Taonal 6291 520.42 392.47
As on As on As om
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 Dlst .I‘.P‘l'lll 2022
(a) Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Opening Halance 53731 409.55 409.55
Profit a5 per Statement of Profit & Logs for the year 135,16 127.76 -
Tatal 7248 537.31 409.55
Mote on Retaned Earnings
Retained earnings represents the amounts of acoomulbated camings of the Company.
As on As on As on
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 st April 2022
{b) Re-measurement gain/{loss) on defined benefit plan
Oipening Balance -16,89 -17.08 -
Additions dunng the year 7.33 0.1% -17 08
Tuoal .56 -16.8% -17.08

Mote on Other Comprehensive Income

Represents remeasurement of defined benefit liability which comprises of actuanal gains and losses, the effect of the asser ceilling,
excluding smounts included in net interest on the net defined benefir Hability,




TRENDLOUD DIGITAL INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
91, Top Floor , Investwell Centre G Chetry, T.Nagar , Cheninai
Summary of material accounting policy information and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2024

ol e i [matvean 4 Laakler, excetyt atbersie tade)

As on As on As on
Farticulars 31 Muarch 2024 31 March 2023 st April 2022

Secured (measured af amortized cost)

SOB LOAN 2 AJC MO 52050550 67.73 145.53 Z16.44

SCB TRENDLOUD DIGITAL (TLY) 53300195 13057 197.63 I57.84

Toral 193 143,16 474.28

Bode Mo 17(b) -Curren Borrowings

Secured (measured at amoriised cost)

SCB ACND 4270501218 0D Afc 316,57 3B5.90 2370

SCH LOAN 2 AJC MO, 52950530 77.81 o.M 353,56

SCH TREMDLOUD DIGITAL {TL1) 53XM195 66,00 e | 58.43

Canara Bank 10,44

Toial 460,45 E17.02 67022

s on As on An DB
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 (st April 2022
- - -

Proviston for Crratuity 37,00 1247 20.78
[ Total 37.00 3247 20.78

Provamon for Ciranmry 276 Al 211

Total 2.76 LN n

*Refes note no, 52
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TRENDLOUD DIGITAL INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

41, Top Fhoor , Investweell Ceatre GN Chery, T.Magar,

Chenmai

Summary of ralenial aco

Miate = 21 Oriteer Rnencial laihiltics

ing policy infor

jon and oiher explanatory information for the year ended 3 March 2024

(otmonnnd i Lopcim £ L salilia, et eitwTa L)

As on As an As oo
Pasiculan 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023 | Ofsq Apeil 2022
ApCurrent (measured g1 amaonised
mul‘}
{ither Expenses Payable 4 360 51
Tutal 401 340 L5l
Mare - 22 Other Carrent Lialsdlivies
Ag on As on Az an
Fartioulin 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023 | 0lss Apwil 2022
Unseeured Considered CGaod
Framcory Dors payalie 2530 1247 .71
[“Towml 2534 12.67 56,71




TRENDLOUD DIGITAL INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
51,5TH FLOOR , INVESTWELL Ceare GN Cheuy Road T Magar, Chednai.
Summary of maerial accouming policy information and other explanaiory ssformmation for the year
ended 31 Murch 2034
foboreni ta Tl € Lakds, © aphyrnas stuted]
Fur year caded For year ended
% N1-03-2024 31-0%-20625
Pamivuliss
Mo Mo e 23 Kevenas from Chpemtinng.
Zale of SeroccE
Advertismg & Pnmsation Yeevices - lntersbate LT -
Acdverining & Promotions Seres - Staie i1 53 .
Lol Servies - Retairer & Licensing 5 06.23
Curward Bills - Licensny Exempaed 1,929,885 1504
Chatward Bills - Ticensing (Overmess Sales) 414854
[mtcgermbod Serviess - Conbent o Trodisetion 244 TR
Intepgrated Serviees Conviend Pecaduastion 200, 504,34
Toaal 3,200.55 5,70.

| - e

St od ko 18 the desaggreggation of the Geoup's renenue o coatracts with eustomens by timing of tranasler

Fs endled cnded
Revonae from canrracis with cusiomers U;::J.:ml Fﬂ;ﬁ:ﬂﬂﬂ
R-cn-.q_-,:'ruad- at a Poani al fme
Adyertising 8 Promeiion Sorvices - [nscratabe WL .
Advertising d Promonions SEOvices - Banie 230,08 #
Intcgembed Service - Content T Prosdazsion 24,00 FHL T
Trieprated Bervioes Conment Teosduction TiHL AT B44.55
Lical Servies - Retssner & | acensins 1.53 140
Chubwand Bills - Licevming Exernjited 47214 35,14
Cgtward il - Liceoing (Crverseas Saler) . 404434
Toaal 1,741.37 552474
For yeat ended Pot year ended
Particulars 31-03-2074 31-03-2025
oot NSt
Trmcle Recomvables oo T EZRLIT
¢emaract Liabilities
Mudvnisen frimn CusEumIEE - .
209.7% SHILIT

Thi comtme: assets primaniky relaie i the Comsgrany's rights o conitcranion
pepoting duie, The contrae amses ars irarsFesred 1o peceivables shen the o

when the Company s an invoice o the CUsinmeE

A seceieable is o Aght v consdemion thar is unconiditional upon passage of Gme.
riagpidad b s ein b e adien crmird & o Besed i the cupsomee. Reveoue

biins 3 “right to nepsal™ i retopnised over the acoess peacsd

i classificd as 8 financial sset for thede cees a8 vight 0 ooasiderstion i1 une

_Mote No -24 Other Income

Hevernics 10 cwmzas o

foe mervices rendered but net Dkl ait ibve
phis become meonditinnal. This uaaliy oocurs

Tevenue from the sale of peodocs &
Frosen Beenses where the cusicamer
iptllirygs i RSP S

ditirinal upon passag of deme

Far year ended For vear ended
Pariculars 31-03-2024 31-03-2023

Foneign Eschange Gain - o4
Inacrest on FT Refursd 11
Tmierest Recermed : 3457
(oiEract g AT SETTRG L1t <
Unadindimgg of loteroat(Henml Deposit) LH'J‘

Toral |

b o il pereriie




March 2024

TRENDLOUD DIGITAL INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
91, Top Floor , Investwell Centre GN Chenty, T.Nagar , Chennai

Summary of material accounting policy information and other explanatory information for the year ended 31

{Amasnt in Indian & [akhs, exerpt othersise stated)

Note No -25 Operating Cost

For year ended For year ended
Particulars 31-03-2024 31-03-202%
Licensing
Iewvard Bills 1,029.34 1,000.02
Revenue Share FB & YT 010,29 203355
Content Production
Content Production H7.54 627.11
Promotions
Commisston - PromoBons - 16.18
Spcial Media Promotions 10210 50,20
Professional Charges 109.14 13049
Total 2,238.41 4,758.14
‘Note No -26 Employee Benefits Expenses
For year ended For year ended
Particulars 31-05-2024 31-03-2023
Salanes 548.30 420.33
Contribution to provident & other fuands 2387 23.82
Gratuity Provision ( Refer Note no.32) 1304 12594
Intern Stipend & Conveyance 833 835
Toual 594.48} 535.44
Note No -27 Finance Cost
For year ended For year ended
Particulars 31-03-2024 31-03-2023
Bank Charges (.78 142
Interest Pawd 75.80 T1.17
O} Processing charges-SCH .43 1.4
Interest expense (Unwinding of Interest) ( Refer note no.6 &18) 17.48 18.87
Total 94.49) 'JEEI




Note No -28 Depreciation & Amortisation

For year ended For year ended
Particulars 31-03-2024 31-03-2023

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equpment 52.97 25.54
Amoriisaton on Intangible Assets 23.00 10.23
Depredation on ROU Assct ( Refer note no.G &18) 21.24 21.24

Total 77.29 0l.02
Mote Na - 20 Other Expenses

For year ended | For year ended
Particubass 31-03-2024 31-03-2023

Administrative & Selling E
Payment to auditors (Note Mao35) 2.00 2.00
Provasion for ECL 18.25 10.71
Anchor Charges - .11
Boarding and Lodging D2 557
Broadband / Internet Charges 1.85 (.66
Business Promotion 0.04 T.26
Compuater Maintainence (.11 011
Consultant Charges - 1.77
Postage & courier charges 018 011
Commission Paid (.50 -
Domain Charges 11.28 1.67
Discount allowed - (.33
Duties 8 Tazes 21.81 5.86
Dhiesel Expenses - 6.1
EPF Late fees . 0.0
Flectricity Chazges 725 5.70
Facebook Promotion Charges - 4.48
Food & Converance 0.73 1.70
Legal Fees . 0.20
Office & General Expenses 802 10,62
Perrol Convenyance 034 0.3z
Printing & Stnonery (.29 a.09
Rent Paid 302 093
Repairs & Maintainence 492 1.48
ROC Filing Fees n74
Rouding Off 0.07 -0
Subseription | Softwase Licenses 7.59 257
TS Late fees & Interest 002 410
Labour Charges 01006 -
Telephone Fxpenses 1.18 0.69
Write off expenses 0.11 -
Travelling & Conveyance 2522 24.59

Tuotal 115.95 109.72




TRENDLOUD DHGITAL INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Summary of material sccounting policy information and other explanatory information for the year ended 3 March 2024

[l vt e Jmaliow F bpbibe, Exiehy’ Whermaw e
3 EARMNINGS PER SHARE

As As ai

PARTICULARS March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2003
(a) Basic carnings per share (In Rs.)
From comtinuing nperations steobuarble w the equity holders of the company 1352 1278
From disconanacd operstions - -
[Total Basic Hamings per share sttriburshle w the eguity halders af the nmpany 1152 12,78
(b Diiluted earnings per share (Ta Rs.)
|From continuing operatons ansbutable o ke wxuny hokders of the company 1552 1278
From dscontineed operatons E .
Total dilued Farnieys pec share atinbuimble 1o the equity hikders of the commpany 1352 1278
(£ } Reconcaliations of camings used in caleidating earnings per share
Basic earmings per share
Frofits atnbutble te the equity holders of the company wed in calcubiting besic carnings per shane:
From eontimiing opentions 1535.16 127.76
From diseomeinned operution: - -

135,18 127,76
Dribwted earmings per share
Profit From continaing operations astrburabls o ke equity hoklers of the company: 13516 E27.76
Ured in calculating basic eanings per share
Addel: Interest Suvings on convertble Bands
Used in cabeulating diloed cimings per shars
Frofit from descentnued operation
Profies ausibarable w the equity bolders of the campany used in caleulating diluted camings per
ehare: 135,16 12776
{d) Weighted Average Number of Shares used s the denominaior
[ Weaghted Avernge Mumber of sharcs used as the denominaser 1t cabeulsuny basic camings per share 1, LR DR (ECLIRLE]
Adsrmenss for calculation of diluted samings per share .
Cipiatng
Convertibée Bonds
Weighted Average Numbes of Shares and potential cepuity shares used as the desominator in
caloulating diluted earmings per share (RCIIRTE] ],mﬂWL
{Thes ghomr has have Jyt sabswtinmally Swk)
-
|

3.
* 1
[
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TRENDLOUT DIGITAL IMNDOIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Susnmmasy uf materinl accounding policy infrmation and cther explensiory information for the year ended 1 March 304
(ol ot e o Tt & ki, e mibarusi stavesl)

N RELATED PARTY DISLOSURES
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) Kry Managesscni Prrsonnel's (KMP)

Relation
Huliding s

Dhrecues Inveterted ©ompary
Drerewer fmeeesced Company
Drreciar |ml|[\j1.ﬁh‘1ﬂny
Drrecear Inneresied Compuny

Rhirector Inreressed L1
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Pamiculars Grauped Unda T0s1 March 2034 g Mol 2023
Arnoan In Ba Amoun |s Ha
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TRENDLOUD DIGITAL INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

& ¥ ol 1l g pokicy wi iun and nihes capl il dm for che year ended 31 March 2024
fﬂ#“:ﬂ'mlrf@fﬁﬁ_imh.nm

1 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

The Compang has o defined heneiit gty plan [Unfunded) The defined beaefy Ersniny plah i govemed by ghe Paymens al Camnaty Aoy, 1972 Undler the aee,
ermpileryee whio bas comploed Sve yrars af serviee s onted s specad benefit. The level of benefin depends on tee member's leegrh o service and ssbiry ut penirermen
g

The Company sdapoed the Indus Accounnmg Sanssnd (Ind AS P Timployes Bemefins® such s Providens Fund, Employees Smie Insumsee & Granuity . Cirainey
has beer provded in ehe books bused on the scnanad vslstion obisi 4 froom i Aol valoer. The Mothod used for seswinial vahmsion the projeceed uns crrelin

LA
The fallrmnng iwble urmmaised e componenes of defined besefs o grused e 1he off pevdit andl foms and the smessnt recogmsed i the Balancs
Sheer
Parriculsm N-Mar-H]  5iMa
[ —
(hpeningg Balance Shees (Asser)) Lishility (A) EEED) EELT]
H urment sernce cont 1150 1154
Imicsess cost on benci aldiganoen FEC] 1
ol Expanse/(] } Recognised i Pl (B) [T [FLT
Actual Benedit Panl -
Aciusnal cranges ansinyg from chisges = fnanoad
ll-I.ITLF[l.Il.I
[ el changes arieg from changes in desnagranhic
Liaursprinms
Acuasmal changes inamy from chasges = sxpenemes (.60 me.25)
idjustments
Total Remeasarements Recognised in Other R (025
Comprehensive (Income)/ Lasy )
Clasing Balance Sheet (Avser)/ Liolility (A1 B 4C) W\ 34,38
Parviculars H-Maz-2 31-Ma
Cisrena Linbikey 150 i
Mo Cuivemi Lashiline 3700 1Z47
Liakility/ {Asset } Recognized bn the balance sheet »nn 3558
Fapenses i e Im% af Frofs and 1359 1204
oo
Lhier Comprehensive (Income) ¢ Loss T [l
The prncipal i el o o g gretunty fue the Comgrny's plans are dsnm helow:

P 3 m-'l\i-ﬁ'!p-l'h ! -Mar- 1Y
Dimconunt st 7 7.0
Fauniie E-:El.t:i 5.4 L |
Witkelrawal mane [HT 15.00]




TRENDLOUD DIGITAL INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Summary of mutesial accounting policy informatian and vaher explanasery infommstion for the year ended 31 Maseh 2024
o omannts i i Siadlo ¥ fir [ b, walerr wlyratis riated)

43 CONFIRMATIONS

The company bad reg 4 ferr confismaton of bl J'nmdtrukndm-ruun.’al.:ﬂ.i‘.UHhuwuﬁkmmmmmfmmm.llmwwmr
manageenent s af the oginkon that the ssmoe will aop have limpact on the & ial pusiticen of the Company,

HA CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The followwng Incomme tax démands are ﬂullhndiEF 2s o 1.03.2034:

51 Mo, _Asse 11 Year of Diemond Amvoun | Ba, In lakhs) Pending forwm
AY 302524 1836]  NARAC
AY 202122 2nn ITAT
Toral e

Howeer, the company is in ghe proccss of wking remedisl setion wich apprepoate Income ax gushodty,

HE CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
The company has no Capinl Commisments diming the curvent yesr { Previeys e <Nl

B AUDIT FEES=
Particulars 31" March 2024 | 31" March 2023 _|
Fevs fi Swrutry sudis 200 2.00
Fees for other serrces sendpred x
“Total i L0
*Ewluts aypbicatbs e

3 SEGMENT REPORTING

bt secomdamee with Incdinn Accounting Standard 108 “Reportalde Segmenes” preseribed by Companies {Aezounting Seandaris) Rides, 2015, the Company has deterrned
ia8 prebrevary bawiness segmens s sale of media coment & wlversing . Therefiee, the sogemen FENTIE, epmens rosubis, seprment aesdrs, segreent labilities, el cos
nuarred 10 sequice sepeent sssets, depeecision change are all as i refipted i the fimsncial statesments. The segment roporting is diselossd in Asitiexure A

37T MICRO SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES
The Company has classified MEME supplicr based on the information reeoived from the suppbier and aceondmgly grouped under Mo Nio2o,

(Titei gpae duar daee it rotemtivmally blund )




TKEHEI'.DI.'D l]ﬁi:ﬁl. 1N FRIVALE LIMITED
Sumssary of ing policy ink mwmmuummmumm
Wm#ulﬂ-fﬂlﬂh.mmw

3B Faur viles socsssemen)
@ Fanancial instruments bey crgnry

A fimancid arsers and finascial liabibtion are = 'm-luuhmldmmtwmmmrmmurmmumdmm|-um
e ap priaarnes s <f e G rabor
i limthire dhback Fair vabus i try dor anaets ms w1 A1 Mok
Paticulars A a1 31 Mlarch 2004 As at 31 Biarch 3007
Amarniced Coar Carmyisg Viles EI":I;_ Amrimed Casy ] Carying Yalur i! |
mEEEE
rade peieivilidon WAL by ] E SR3aT 58207
h 4 enh equrralens 1902 nm g 57 (1Y)
Feancwd sary EXT K17 E im 489
i > g - JLLM E'}H
Toval fimancial asyets LTS 11418 : KIGW [ITE] -
linhiliies
#4973 AT : AT AbiLiA -
Leass Lishiktios o] Iuib . kLT 18341
[ Trade uapabies 1,77 . s 17246
b fnanoal hataknes L 4 - L&D hio -
[Vatsl Ginaincial Wabiliies [ it ] - [ 1205, -

L] H“h—m-ulluhpﬂu

T Comgany recorsds cevtain financial ssete and firatecsil dalsloses ot Far vakie-om & recurrg basi, The Comyrany determises fiir vabe hased on the price it woub] masve i 5ol an
l-nm'p:rlunlﬁlfihhhy-unnhh#mt-:umhu._u-hip-mm-hmrhuun the principed oe maost sdvangesul ke e thet s or
Ealslry

mhmpub—lmhhhhmpnmmhmmu—nrmﬂnan}kum wnpun et marker dats ohbined edrpendens sumnm, whik|
-mhrn'lhhnmml'bﬁﬁui.ﬂpurr'- _umimnmrm:hrmuim_.miwmh:nhrmum- FANIY S mrmsmmaes the e of obeerable ingaits end
i il nﬁw.pullihmmtwﬂhr_

Financed smers s finsscial lisbibties mesmired s far v o the halnge thes are grouped o seer [ ety of Fir vahue breracchy. These brecl are bapsd on the clurretiliy of
gt impun oo the 1, frolhsas

rwnwmmtmntmmm&mm imits i bbb

* Lavvel 3t [njrat oiteer e quoted prics) chided wahin Leeel U rhiit e alservahle for the s of latnbiy, ceter deecry or ey

= Loved X Uanbaervable ingsan for e s o Ry,

Sewce the Compainy o mar have any annumuurhhh-ullunrznm-ﬂ-'ﬂLdefﬂUﬂnnp: ol Snvewwemesss, repursing uf fevwel 1, Lesel 2 and Lewel 3
categeaied uF thimrmisiog fuir vabs s mot applcabis.

(Tiar ey e ot o sictemamany s/




TRENDLOUD DIGITAL [NDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Summary of muterial accounting policy information and other explanatory information for the vear ended M March 2024
fﬂﬂ'mmﬁflﬂﬂfﬁfﬂnm m;uu_}

Financial risk management

The Company’s prncipal fnancisl lisbilities comprian of lowns and borrowings, trade and other payabdes, The main purpose of these finspcial
liabilities is 1o finance the Cormpany's eperstions and o provide guarantess b support i and growgy companses operticne. The Company's prinegal
Rinancial ansets inchude kans, trade and other receivables, mvestments, cush and deposits that derve directly from its apeTtons

The Company i exposed 1o market risk, intercst rate sk credit sisk and liguiry sk The Company’s senioe management oversses the management
of thess riske. The Comyrny's senior management assesses the financial risks and the approprinte financlal risgk governance framework in geeordance
with the Company's policies and ok abjectives. The Bozrd of [iecior review and agree on policies for managing cach of thear dsks, which arel
summarised below.

a) Market rsk
The Company is exposed 10 macket dsk theough its use of fnancial insmments and specifically o interest rate mgk and certaan other price riska,
which result from both it operating asd mvesting activites.

i) Interest rate sk

Inzerest rate risk b the risk that the fae value or fature cash fows of Finaenesal instrument will Aucmare because of changes i market interest cates)
The Company's exposire 1o the sk of changes in madkel intesest stes are miiriged by bosrowing o fived intersst rtes, During the year Company
dicl not have any foating rate borrowings

As an As at
Interest-bearing brans and borrowings: 31 March 2034 31 March 2023
Floating rate berrowengs 659,73 BT

Fixed eate borrowings

Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The table below sumsmarises the impact of inerease/ docrease of the interest rates on Boating sate bsorrawings at the reporsing dare, on the
Company's equity and profit for the perod. The unilysis in hased on the wssuemgtion of 47215 change.

Az an 31 March 2024 As ot M Macch 2023
Effect of profic/ (loss} before 1ax
Diecresse by 1% 65313 H51.58
Incrense by 1% 666,33 468,79

The fair valives of the Campany's interest-bearing boesowings and boans are deteremined under smortised cost meshiod uring discount rate that
eedleets the Bmier's borrowing mre as at the end of the teparting peeited. These tates are considered 1o refloet the market rate of interest and hence
the carrping value are considered tor be ar Fair vahs,

The fair values of the Company's intoree.b bderonwings ancd losns arc determined under amortised eost method using discoont rate that

g

reflects the isuer's borrowing mie 23 at the end of the reporting perod. These eats are considered to reflect the market rate of interess and henes
the enrryng value are considensd bo be ot fir value.

Loans, cash and bunk balances, trade receivabiles, other financial assets, trade payabibes wnd other Bnancial Babilites have fair values that approimate
to their carrying ameunts due b taeie shoet-term nature
ii} Foreign eurrency risk

Exposres t currency exchiange mies arise (rom the Campany’s overss sales and purchases, which are prumarily demominted in US dolars (USD)
Eoro {EUR), Geeat Britam Pound (GATY, Austsalisn Dollars (AL, Danish Kroner (DEK) and Honghong Dallar (HETH. The Company has mot
entered into any hedging teansaction Lo mitigate the foresgn exchange fucation rsk,

The company does not hive any Financial Asset and Fenancal Lishilitics which is exposed o foseign currency risk




b} Crodit risk
Credit rigk is the ok of loss that may arse on ouranding Gnancial insraments if 3 coonterparty default on its obliguzons, The Cosrpany's exposure
bo eredit rick artes majocly from rrade reccivabless unibilled revenue and other financmal axsere

Other financial sssets like security depasits, loans and bank deposits are moatdy with employecs, govermment bodies and banks and hence, the
Company does nof expect uny credit sk with meEpect to these finan ol gset

As at As af
31 Macch 2024 31 March 2023
Classes of financial assers
Teade recervables OO T 58217
Cash and bank balanees 1992 16,57
Oither finaicial 2aseis 837 AR9
Loans - 21330

The Company continuously manitors defaults of customess and other counterparties, identified cither mdvidually or by the Company, and
incorporstes this mformation & its credit sk controls. The Company's palicy is to wansset only with counterparics who are highly credetworthy
wmhmnmmhwdminumﬂdurﬂigmmmlm - i 1 i

Trade receivables, Investments and loans

Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derved from revence from customer, Credie sk has been managed by the Company cheough
F?::" upprivvals which continuoly monitar the crad thiness of the custnener o whom the Company grants credi teems in the nosmal cousy
of busness,

Investments snd Loans represonts amaonted invested in it subsicliary campanies. The Company monitors thy performanece of the Comipany
conalantly and evabuating the mk associated with the nvestment,

Cash and bank balances and investments

Thee coedit sk for cash and cash equivalents, fised deposits and mutual fands are considered negligible, snce the connterparties are reputable banks
with high quubity sxtemal credin ratings and the company is in the process of constantly evaliating the nek asseciated with the mvestment.

Other financial ussets
Other Giancial assets mainly comprises af secunty deposits and other advances which are gven o lenders, Craditors, landlords or ather
povemmental agendies in relition to contracts exeeuted and are sssessed by the Compeny for credit nisk on g continunus hasis,

The details in respect of revenue and receivables from the top customer is as follows:

The company ir engaged in development and sale of developed plots. Sales are made 1o the general publbe at o smndard rate pee sqft with ke
varations, Henee, reporming of revenus frem tap cugtomers shall not be applicable 1o the company, Alo, the Company opeeses with very minkmal
creilit period and mosly eollection is made befane registration. Hence, the company docs not have any trade receivables.

Espected credit boss ussessment
Trade receivables, contract assers and loans

In respest of ather Brvancial aasets inchiding investmenss and loans, the managernent has perfommed a compee| € tmwemt of credit sk
associated, tiking into eonsideration historical credit loss experience, cumment economic conditiong, and any relevant qualitstive factars Based an this
evalustion, it bag been determined thae, as of the repoting dste, there i no significent sk of credit ampairment neceastating the secognition of sn
ECL provision for these sisets.

The Cotmpany continuously monitors defaults of cusmoesers nd other countespartes, identified either ndividually or by the Company, and
snoarparates this information mto is eredit sk coatrols. The Cosmpany's palicy is to transsct only with counterparties who see highly creditworby|
which are assessed based on internal due dilipence parameters,

The crediz Ask for cish snd bank balinees are congidered negligible, since the counterparties are reputable hanks with ligh quality external r_mﬁll
ranngs

Other fisuncil assets madnly comprises of rental depossix, security deposits and loans which are given 1o lindlords or other grvernmental agencies in
relation 16 contraets executed and related parsies ase apsessed by the Company for credie dek on & eontinuoes basia

With respecr to tmde receivables)! unhilled revenue, the Company has constituled toime to review the reeeivables o preniochic basis and 1o kel
necesAry mitigations, wherever seguired. The Compaty crestes allowance for all tnsecured receivables based on Bfetime expoctod credit loss ('BELY

The following table summarizes the change m the loss allowanes messured usng ECL

31-03-2014 JH-03-2023
pening balance FTET] 1350
Amount provided during the year 18.25 171
Amaant reversed during the year
Closing balanse AZ4G 4.1




€} Ligpudiny nske

Loquidity riak i that the Comapany might be uasble 1o meet is ubliganons. The Company manages its hiquidity needs by moninaring scheduled debs
servicing papments for long-lerm financial lishilities is well 25 forecust exsh inflows and outflows due m dav-ro-dey busness. The dum used for
analysng thess eagh flows is consseent with thas used i the comiraoml mansity analysiz below, Ligquidity needs are monimood in varos time
bands, o & day-to-day and week-to-wck basis, 35 well as on & monthly, quarterly, and yeary bams depending con the business needs. Met cath
fequirements arc compared (0 availible bormowing Faciliies in onder to deteerine beadenom or any shortfalls This analysis shows thar svaibable
barrowing facdices are expected 1o be sufficient aver the ool peeriod.

The Company's shiective is to mamtain cash and bank's shir term credi fciliies o meet sts byuidity eequirements for 3-day pesods at a
muneman. Thas objective was mer for the reporting ponods. Funding for Jeng-rerm Baidiee necds is additionally secured by an adequate smouni of]
committed cred Facilities,

The Compeny's objective is o maintin o balanee between continuity of fending and Bexibility through the use of shorr-tenm borrowings. The
Company sseessed the eancentration of dak with redpect i refinancing it debe andd coneoded it to be low, The Company has sccess to a sufficien|
vanety of sources of fundmg and debe mitinmg within 12 months ean be ralled sver with exiating lenders.

Asat 31 Murch, the Company's non-derrative Gasneis) liskilities have eontractis) mgtyirties 45 summarnissd bl

As at 31 March 2024

- Within More than 12
. oy LE monthe mianths
Borrowmgs T =
Trade Payabiles 12077 -
Lease Linhilitiss 1804 145,85
Chiber financial liabilities 401 .
Az ar 31 March 2023

- Within Blore thian 12
" 12 months months
Berrowings 21702
Trade Payables 17246 5
Lazse Liahilities . 16680
Cither frsscial Lakbilities LI =

{Thi e Jon B e sieativmatly b




TRENDLOUD DIGITAL INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Summary of material accounting policy information and other explanatory information for the year ended 3 Murch 2024
Al sty are in Tnddian &, wnters otherwsise stated)

First=time adoption of Ind AS

These are the Company's fiest financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For periods up o and mcluding the year ended
31 March 2023, the Company prepared its financial statements in aceordance with Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 200,
notified under section 133 of the Act and other relevant prowisions of the Act (Previous GAAT). Accordingly, the Company has
prepared financil stements which comply with Ind AS applcable for perods ending on or after 31 March 2024, toperher with the
comparative period data as ar and for the year ended 31 March 2023 This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Campany]
in restating its smtement of financial positien as at 01 April 2022 and its previously published Gnancial statements as at and for the year]
ended 31 Maech 2022 under previous GAAR,

First time adoption exemptions applicd
Upon transition, Ind AS 101 permits cersain exemptions from full retrospective application of Ind AS. The Company has applicd the
mandatory exceptions and certain optional exTMpLons, as set out below:

Mandatory exceptions adopted by the Company

(i} Estimates

Hindsight is not wsed 10 create or revise estimates, The estimates made by the Company under previous GAAP were not revised for the
applcation of lnd AS excepr where necessary 1o seflect any differences in accounting policies or ermors,

Optional exemptions availed by the Company

(1) Property, Plant and Equipment

Ind AS 101 permits o first-time adopter m dect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plunt and equipment as
recoguised in the financial statements as ar the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP or fair value them as
transition date and use that as its decmed cost as ar the dare of transition. The Company has elected to use the fair valwe as deemed cost
on the date of transition to Ind AS for land and the carrying value under previous GAAP as the deemed cost on the date of transition to
Ind AS for all other propesty, plant and equipment. The Company has adopted cost model fore subsequent measurement and recognition
of items in property plant and EquIpment,




TRENDLOUD DIGITAL INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED |
Summary of materal accounting policy information and other explanatory information for the vear ended 31 March 2024
LA amoouantr avn f Endicow &, sy aiberwie itated]
41 Equity Reconciliation
Reconciliation of equity as ar 1 April 2022 { date of Teansition o Ind AS)
Foal Mote Previous GAAP*  Adjustment Ind AS
ASSETS
Mon ~ Cuticnt Asscis
Property, Plint & Equipment 45 - 40,45
Chiher Entangible Axsees (ERH] FETIL) 6706
Intangible assers under develipment . -
RO Assen - 19197 19117
Femnaneial Aswct
Loans % . .
Other Financial Assct 1049 {.04) 445
Drefesred Tiax assetiMet) . = x
64,95 238.17 i3 12
Cuirrent Assers
Inviribones G59.04 21265 44753
Financial Agser = s
Trade Hecelrables 67872 (13504 5,22
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1009 - % U]
Lo THO 34 . TED. A4
Chhier Financial Asset - -
Current Tax Asser (Net) .07 (4.01) 4505
Cither Cusrrent Mg 20,52 5, K} a8 i e
239221 {224.35) 2,157 56
TOTAL ASSETS : 2,457.15 13.82 2,470.98
First-time adoption of Ind AS (continued)
Equity Beconciliation (continued)
EQUITY & LIABILITY
Equity
iquity Shase Capital 10045 . 1008
Other Exuity 03,31 - 392.47
Total cquity 703,31 - 492.47
Mon-Current Liahilitics
Financial Liabdlities
Barrowings 47428 - £74.24
Limse Lishilities - 183,41 1H3.41
Other Financial Linbiities - - :
Mronvisnans - 2074 20.7H
Ciehier Mon-Cerrent Linbilies - - -
Diefereed Tax Liabality . 1.44 144
Tatal Non curment labilities 47428 20544 | 679.92
Current Liabilities
Finaneial Liabilines = =
Borrowings 622 . 676.22
Lease Liahilities - 1513 15.13
"Tauanly Payalalus - v
“Tond euwstanding doc of micen enterprises and small ¢ - . -
~Tosal cursanding due of ceeditors ather thas i e 54,90 . S44.00
Other Finencial Lisbilites 351 - 151
Chther Curnent Labilities 5671 B 5071
Provvasion s = 21 imn
1,260.34 17.24 1,298 50
2,458.94 227 88 247098
* The previous GAAP figures have been rochissifisd 10 conlorm o Ind A% pesscatabon requirements for ﬂmpumnm%
E
o sh




R iliution of equity as ar 31 March 2023
Foot Mate Previous GAAP#® Adjustment Inal AS
ASSETS
Hon = Current Assets
Property, Plant & Bquiprment 5079 - 50,79
Other Intanyphie Asgey k45 B3.37 T1d82
Intangible assets under develupment s - 3
RO Assot - 16393 169,95
Financial Asaet .
Invesmmsen . 2
Lasana £, = &
Oiber Financial Asses 1k 40 {5600 449
Dhefimrriod i anser(Met) 217 {IL3H) 5
93.80 24732 539,43
Current Assers
Inventorics 5.4 (249.03) 671
Financial Agser - u s
Trade Heceivables 60638 (24:21) 58217
Cash and Cash Eguivalents 1657 = 16.57
Lona 213,30 . 2153
Uiher Financil Assed s - .
Currenr Ths Asset (Ner) T1.58 M0 7356
Chther Current At LG9 516 314685
LAZLEG {27270 L549,16
TOTAL ASSETS = 1,915.75 (25,58 1,BR&, 50
First-time adoption of Ind AS {continued)
Equity Reconciliutien {continued)
EQUITY & LIABILITY
Equiry
Eguity Share Cagsital (LEREE ] - I
Oither Hguity Tt i (24293 53042
Total equity §66.84 (242.92) 62042
Moa-Currens Linbilities
Financial Liabilides - ¥
Hormowings Hile - 343,16
Lenss Lizhilities - 16687 166,89
Other Financial Linbilites : - %
Prosvisians - 3z47 3247
Lehier Moi-Corment Linbilities . - -
Deferred Tax [ability i [ 1.3
Total Man current liabilitics 34316 119,56 | 54279
Current Lisbilities
Financal Liabikies
Borruwings 517.02 = 51742
Liase Liabiliries - 16.52 1652
Tracde Payables - -
~Tistal cutstanding due of mscro enterprises and srmall ¢ = .
Toanl owsranding due of ereditors ather than, micrn e [TL46 - 17246
Cithier Fimaneial Linbididesg .00 - 3460
by Cugeen Laalalicics 12.67 - 12257
Prowisons = 311 i1l
T05.75 19,63 725,38
1,915.73 (23.73) 1,889.59
© The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements Tt the purposes of this note




Reconciliation of Profit or Loss for the year ended 31 Marnch 2023

Foot Mate Previous GAAP* Adjustment lnd_.ﬂ._ﬁ
Revenue from Operstions RE L] 5,707.20 = 5,107.30
Chihier Income 2400 M7 (1,44 516
Taotal Income 574152 044 5,742.56
oot Cose 25000 4,758.14 = A4, 75514
Employee Benefits Expenaes 26,1K0 B2250 1294 535,44
Finance Costs 270 T4.07 1457 0204
Depreciation and Amertization Expense 2H.04 3510 210 6102
Other expenses X 132138 {2255} 100,73
Total Expense 5,520.19 .07 5,55?&
(Loss) before tax 22173 (3663} 165,10
Tz expense
= Luiereit Tax 54.50 5SR59
-Rieversal of my pertiining o previous year z : S
~Deferred mx(Ineome)/ Bypenae (L3R (L6} {L246)
(Loss) for the year 163.52 (35.76) 127.76
Ceher Comprehensive Income
Hemenmirernent Crain ar (los) on defined benefit plan 0,19 .19
Totl Comprehensive inesene for the year 163,52 | {35.57)] 127.95

* The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to lnd AS presenmtion reguiremenits for the purposes of this noee

lmpuct of Ind AS adoption on the statement of cash flows for the year enaded 31 March 2023

Foot Mowe Previons GAAP*  Adjustment Ind AS
et Cashiow from Opsemting Activirg AR5 £ BG5S
Nt cashflow from [nvesting sctivity (97.33) 7.an
Mes eashflow from finenceng Activity [383:26) [ELER
Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents 6,37 - 6.37
Cash aind cash equivalent as at 1 Apal 2022 1019 - 1019
Coash wnd cash equivalont as at 31 March 2023 16.57 1657

* The peevieous GAAP figures have been reclassified 1o conform to Ind AS presmmtion sequireemenis for the purposes of this note

u

F b [ iliag

Diefined Benefit Ohligation

Both under provious GAAT and Ind A%, the Coamija
wetunrial basis, Under previous GAAP, the enmre

iy secognised costs rolatod o s post-employment defined benefic plan on anl
eout, Including actuarisl gaing and losses, sre charged to profit or loss Under Ind-AS,
remeasuruments foomprising of actuarial gains and loses, exchuding umounes included in ot interest on the net defned benefit liahsility,
and the retum on plun ussets excluding smounts inchuded in net interest an the net defined benefit liability] are recogmived tmmediasely

in the balance sheet with o corresponding debis or credit 1o retrined saenings through Other Comprebendve Income.

b} Other Comprehensive Incpme
Uder Ind A8, all iems of income and expense pecognised in o penod should be meheded in profit or loss for the period, unbes »
sapchied roguires or permits otherwise, Trema of moome and expense thar are not recognised in profit or loss but are shown & the
statement of profit and loss 25 ‘other eomprehensive ineame’ primarily inclisds remeasuroments of defined benefit phuns. The concep
of other commpeehensive imcome did not exist under previous GAAR,

¢} Smtement of cash fMows
The wansétion from Indian GAAY to Tad AS has not had o materdal ampact an the statement of cosh flows
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